
1

Township of Millburn
Minutes of the Planning Board

April 20, 2016

A regular meeting of the Township of Millburn Planning Board was held on Wednesday,
April 20, 2016 at 7:30 PM at The Bauer Center.

Chairman Kenneth Leiby, opened the meeting by reading section 5 of the Open Public 
Meetings Act.

A roll-call indicated the following members were present:

Elaine Becker
Fred Coombs
Sandra Haimoff
Leslie Lombardy
Roger Manshel
Ian Mount
Matthew O’Neill
Robert Tillotson
Mary Esquivel, Vice Chairwoman
Kenneth Leiby, Chairman

Also present:

Ed Buzak,  Board Attorney
Eric Fishman, Court Reporter
Thomas Watkinson, Township Engineer
Eileen Davitt, Zoning Officer/Board Secretary
Kate Keller, Planner
Louis Ploskonka, Engineer
Harold Maltz, Traffic Consultant

APPLICATIONS

SITE PLAN #443, 233 CANOE BROOK ASSOCIATES, 150 JFK PARKWAY

Board Attorney, Ed Buzak, spoke to the vacation of a section of Canoe Brook Road that 
was discussed at the previous meeting.  He advised the Board that, since that meeting, he has 
received, from the Township Attorney, an actual street right-of-way detail, which is part of the 
official map dated 4/15/1980.

Entered as B-1: right-of-way detail dated 4/15/1980



2

Entered as B-2: recorded version of 1978 ordinance

Ed Buzak explained that exhibit B-2 is the ordinance adopted by the Township 
Committee in 1978 that affected the vacation of the road.  These documents confirm what was 
reported at the first meeting, which is that the vacation exists and the road is not a through road.  

Richard Hoff, Attorney for the applicant, stated for the record that the vacation of that 
road is not part of the application and the applicant is not proposing anything to change on Canoe
Brook Road.  

Mr. Hoff stated that he is ready to proceed and intends to present the testimony of the 
landscape architect, engineer and the planner.

Thomas Carman, landscape architect, appeared and was sworn.  His credentials were 
presented and accepted by the Board.  Mr. Carman explained his role in the application.  He 
stated that he has been involved in the overall landscape design of the property as well as the 
amenity design, exterior spaces and lighting design.  

Mr. Carman referred to previously marked exhibit A-3, the overall landscape plan.  He 
indicated that a richly designed detail landscape plan is proposed that includes a diverse pallet of 
hardy plant material, ornamental and native plant material.  He stated that they have selected 
plant material that is native, adaptive and drought tolerant.  There is a good mix of deciduous 
trees along the street frontage as well as the parking lots.  All the trees proposed are 3-inch 
caliper, where the ordinance requires 2-1/2 inch caliper.  

Along the loading area by the hotel, they are proposing evergreen screening as well as 
evergreens at the southeastern side of the proposed garage.  The ordinance requires a minimum 
of 6-foot evergreens and the application proposes a range in height from 6 to 10 feet.  There are 
also ornamental trees proposed in many locations to accent the architecture.  In addition, there 
will be plant material along the parking garage in the area of the louvers in order to further 
screen the garage.  The existing landscaping around the office building is mature and healthy and
will remain.  

Mr. Carman referred to previously marked exhibit A-4, the overall landscape plan of the 
residential building.  He stated that there are 3 courtyards with ornamental trees provided in each
of the 3 spaces.  The spaces are proposed to contain lush plant material, appropriate for the soil 
volume and site conditions.  

Entered as A-15: Landscape plan for the hotel, sheet L-3A

Thomas Carman gave a brief description of the hotel landscape plan.  He stated that there
is a vehicular drop-off area which includes a decorative pavement for vehicular as well as 
pedestrian travel.  Central to the space is a water feature that will provide visual interest as well 
as audible interest in terms of the white noise that the fountain will create.



3

Mr. Carman stated that there is a proposed stormwater basin in the area between JFK 
Parkway and the hotel location.  The edge of the basin is proposed to contain native shrubs and 
herbaceous plants.  Plans have been submitted to the Township Forester, Tom Doty, who 
indicated that he would like the basin planting extended further into the basin.  Mr. Carman 
indicated that the applicant would comply with that request.  Additional comments regarding tree
removal were received from the Environmental Commission.  Mr. Carman stated that the 
applicant fully intends to comply with the Township’s tree replacement ordinance.  

Entered as A-16: lighting plan

Mr. Carman spoke briefly about the proposed lighting plan.  He indicated that they 
revised the originally submitted lighting plan based on comments received from the 
Environmental Commission.  They looked closer at the ordinance and have revised their plan 
accordingly to be compliant with the ordinance.  

Mr. Carman stated that the design is a very responsible design, providing very good, 
uniform coverage.  There are 2 different fixtures proposed.  One is a decorate fixture and the 
other is more utilitarian in nature.  The proposed light fixtures are 16’ in height.  

Ian Mount asked if there has been anything done to ensure that there is no light spillage 
or any issue with the lighting that would affect the closest residence to the parking garage.  Mr. 
Carman indicated that the lights in those specific areas are very directional and they are focused 
downward.  Ian Mount asked if one will see a series of bright lights on top of the garage.  Mr. 
Carman stated that you will see a glow of light and visually you will see some illumination, but it
will not be excessive.  

Sonali Ganti, 34 Canoe Brook Road, asked what kind of evergreen shrubs are proposed to
be planted.  Mr. Carman stated that there will be inkberry between 2 and 2-1/2 feet in height.  
There will be rhododendron at 2-1/2 to 3 feet in height.  And there will be yews at about 2-1/2 
feet in height. 

Charles Bambara, 37 Keats Road, asked what the temperature of the lights will be.  Mr. 
Carman stated that they are proposing 3000 KV, which is what was requested by the 
Environmental Commission. 

Diane Wise, 108 Canoe Brook Road, asked if there was any consideration given to 
motion detector lighting on the upper level of the deck.  Mr. Carman indicated that motion 
lighting was not considered.  

Stacy Michelle, 128 Canoe Brook Road, asked how big the pool will be.  Mr. Carman 
stated that the pool will be 20 feet by 50 feet. 

Richard Hoff called Karl Pehnke, Traffic Engineer, who appeared and was sworn.  His 
credentials were presented and accepted by the Board.  Mr. Pehnke gave a brief summary of the 
traffic study that he prepared.  He stated that he prepared a traffic study, dated December of 



4

2015, revised in March of 2016.  In addition, he prepared and submitted a letter of response to 
comments make by the Township’s Traffic Engineer, Harold Maltz.  

Mr. Pehnke stated that the applicant is proposing a permitted, conforming use.  He 
indicated that the focus of the traffic study, in this case, is on the driveways and ensuring that the
driveways are appropriately located and are able to accommodate traffic flow into and out of the 
site.  The traffic study prepared evaluates each of the driveways.  In addition, the study evaluates 
the adjacent intersection of JFK Parkway and the unnamed road that divides the adjacent mall 
from this property.  

Mr. Pehnke indicated that data was collected for this project in May and June of 2014.  
He stated that there is an existing office building on the site, which will remain.  A residential 
development and hotel are proposed to be developed as well.  From a traffic engineering 
standpoint, they looked at periods of time during a typical weekday where traffic is generally 
reaching its peak on the adjacent roadway system and where these projects would generally have
higher levels of traffic adding to those peaks.  With the data available and looking at the access 
drives, they are able to estimate where the traffic will distribute to and from during the various 
peak hours.  Mr. Pehnke stated that all of the driveways are operating at level of service C or 
better, which is a very good level of service.  The main intersection of the unnamed road and 
JFK Parkway is operating at a level of service B, and will continue to do so. 

Mr. Pehnke stated that the office building provides two connections to Canoe Brook 
Road on the east and west sides of the office building.  The smaller office building, which is to 
be removed, currently has two curb cuts which will be eliminated.  The westerly drive aisle will 
remain as it is today; right turn in and right turn out from JFK Parkway.  The driveway on Canoe
Brook Road, adjacent to the proposed residential, will be shifted slightly to the east from its 
current alignment.  The left turn in driveway on the unnamed roadway will be removed.  Mr. 
Pehnke indicated that they have aligned the access to the service area and west hotel ingress and 
egress opposite the Short Hills Mall driveway and they are proposing a minor widening along the
roadway in order to provide a left turn lane into the service area and a left turn lane onto Canoe 
Brook Road.  The driveways have been designed in accordance with good engineering design 
criteria with turning radii that accommodate the types of vehicles that enter and exit the site as 
well as allow adequate traffic flow into the site.

Laura Palomaki asked where the closest legal U-turn is once you go north bound on JFK 
Parkway.  Mr. Pehnke indicated that the closest U-turn is at Parsonage Hill Road.

Richard Hoff, Attorney for the applicant, agreed to an extension of time to May 30, 2016.

The matter was carried to May 4, 2016.



5

ADJOURNMENT

A motion to adjourn was made by Ian Mount, seconded by Sandra Haimoff, and carried 
with a unanimous voice vote. (11:00 PM)

Eileen Davitt
Board Secretary

Motion: IM
Second: RM
Date adopted: 9/7/16


